

State of South Dakota

NINETY-SECOND SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 2017

400Y0155

HOUSE BILL NO. 1050

Introduced by: The Committee on Commerce and Energy at the request of the Department
of Labor and Regulation

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise and repeal certain provisions regarding the
2 practice of barbering.

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

4 Section 1. That § 36-14-9 be amended to read:

5 36-14-9. The Board of Barber Examiners may promulgate reasonable rules, pursuant to
6 chapter 1-26, for the administration of the provisions of this chapter and to prescribe sanitary
7 requirements for barbershops and barber schools. A copy of the rules promulgated by the board
8 shall be furnished by the board to the owner or manager of each barbershop and barber school;
9 ~~and such.~~ A copy of the rules shall be posted in a conspicuous place in ~~such~~ each barbershop or
10 barber school.

11 The Board of Barber Examiners may also promulgate rules, pursuant to chapter 1-26 ~~for the~~
12 ~~following,~~ to establish:

13 (1) ~~Rules specifying the~~ The fee for the annual renewal of the certificate of registration
14 for barbers ~~and apprentices~~ pursuant to § 36-14-24;

15 (2) ~~Rules specifying the~~ The fee for the operation of a barber school or college pursuant



1 to § 36-14-24;

2 (3) ~~Rules specifying the~~ The fee for the operation of a barbershop pursuant to § 36-14-
3 27; and

4 (4) ~~Rules~~ The procedures governing the inspection of barbershops and the barbershop
5 equipment ~~therein~~ pursuant to § 36-14-28.

6 Section 2. That § 36-14-11 be amended to read:

7 36-14-11. No person ~~shall~~ may practice barbering, ~~or act or serve as an apprentice,~~ without
8 having a certificate of registration issued by the Board of Barber Examiners.

9 Section 3. That § 36-14-13 be amended to read:

10 36-14-13. ~~A~~ Any person of good moral character and temperate habits, not less than who
11 is at least eighteen years of age, ~~who has completed a tenth grade educational course, or its~~
12 ~~equivalent, who has practiced as a registered apprentice for a period of one year under the~~
13 ~~immediate personal supervision of a registered barber, who~~ and has passed a satisfactory
14 examination conducted by the Board of Barber Examiners to determine ~~his~~ the person's fitness
15 to practice barbering, ~~shall be~~ is entitled to a certificate of registration as a registered barber. ~~The~~
16 ~~apprentice applicant may appear any time after one year as a registered apprentice but shall~~
17 ~~appear for examination for becoming a registered barber within a period of five years. The~~
18 ~~exceptions to this shall be military service or lengthy illness; any other exception to this shall~~
19 ~~require approval by the Board of Barber Examiners. An applicant for such a certificate of~~
20 ~~registration who fails to pass a satisfactory examination shall continue to practice as an~~
21 ~~apprentice for an additional six months before he again is entitled to take the examination for~~
22 ~~a registered barber. Such applicant shall, however, appear for examination for registered barber~~
23 ~~within a period of two years.~~

24 Section 4. That § 36-14-13.1 be repealed.

1 ~~36-14-13.1. The Board of Barber Examiners may enter into a reciprocity agreement with any~~
2 ~~state which has substantially the same requirements for licensing or registering barbers as~~
3 ~~required by this chapter. If the board has entered into a reciprocity agreement with a state which~~
4 ~~requires less than fifteen hundred hours of instruction as a prerequisite to licensing, a barber~~
5 ~~from that state who applies for a certificate of registration from the board shall receive an~~
6 ~~additional fifty hours of credit for each month such applicant has practiced as a licensed barber~~
7 ~~in such other state to be applied toward the required fifteen hundred hours of instruction set~~
8 ~~forth in § 36-14-17. If a state which has entered into a reciprocity agreement with the board has~~
9 ~~no apprenticeship requirements, a barber from such state may not receive a certificate of~~
10 ~~registration from the board pursuant to the provisions of this section unless such barber has~~
11 ~~practiced as a licensed barber in that state for a minimum period of one year.~~

12 Section 5. That § 36-14-13.2 be repealed.

13 ~~36-14-13.2. Any applicant from a state which has entered into a reciprocity agreement with~~
14 ~~the board shall receive a certificate of registration to practice barbering upon payment of any~~
15 ~~required fee and submission of proof from the similar licensing entity of the other state that the~~
16 ~~applicant has satisfied the requirements of § 36-14-13.1.~~

17 Section 6. That § 36-14-14 be amended to read:

18 36-14-14. Any person who is at least eighteen years of age, and of good moral character and
19 temperate habits, who has a tenth grade education, who has a may transfer a barber license or
20 registration to this state if the applicant has:

- 21 (1) A license or certificate of registration as a practical barber from another state or
22 country, ~~which~~ that has substantially the same requirements for licensing or
23 registering barbers as required by this chapter, ~~but which has not entered into a~~
24 ~~reciprocity agreement with the board, or who can;~~ or

1 (2) Can prove by affidavits that he the applicant has practiced as a barber in such a
2 another state or country for at least five years immediately prior to making
3 application in this state, shall upon payment of.

4 After a qualified applicant pays the required fee be issued a permit to practice as a
5 journeyman barber until he is called by, the Board of Barber Examiners for examination to
6 determine his fitness to receive a certificate of registration to practice barbering. Any such
7 person failing to pass the required examination, shall be allowed to practice as a journeyman
8 barber until the next examination. Should he fail at the second examination, he must cease to
9 practice barbering in this state shall issue a certificate of registration to practice barbering. If an
10 applicant applying to transfer a barber license or registration to this state from another state or
11 country that requires less than fifteen hundred hours of instruction as a prerequisite to licensing,
12 the applicant shall receive an additional fifty hours of credit for each month the applicant has
13 practiced as a licensed barber in the other state or country. This credit shall be applied toward
14 the required fifteen hundred hours of instruction required by § 36-14-17.

15 Section 7. That § 36-14-15 be repealed.

16 ~~— 36-14-15. A person of good moral character and temperate habits, not less than sixteen and~~
17 ~~one-half years of age, who has completed a tenth grade educational course, or its equivalent,~~
18 ~~who has graduated from a school of barbering approved by the Board of Barber Examiners, and~~
19 ~~who has passed a satisfactory examination conducted by the board to determine his fitness to~~
20 ~~practice as a registered apprentice, shall be entitled to a certificate of registration as a registered~~
21 ~~apprentice. An applicant for such certificate of registration who fails to pass a satisfactory~~
22 ~~examination, shall complete a further course of study of not less than five hundred hours, to be~~
23 ~~completed within one year, in a school of barbering approved by the board.~~

24 Section 8. That § 36-14-16 be repealed.

1 ~~36-14-16. Any person who is at least sixteen and one-half years of age and has a tenth grade~~
2 ~~education, who is of good moral character and temperate habits, who has a certificate of~~
3 ~~registration as an apprentice in a state or country which has substantially the same requirements~~
4 ~~for the registration of apprentices as is required by this chapter, shall upon payment of the~~
5 ~~required fee be issued a permit to practice as an apprentice until called by the Board of Barber~~
6 ~~Examiners for an examination to determine his fitness to receive a certificate of registration as~~
7 ~~an apprentice. Such apprentice shall be credited with the time so spent as an apprentice in such~~
8 ~~other state or country upon the period of apprenticeship required by this chapter as a~~
9 ~~qualification to take the examination to determine his fitness to receive a certificate of~~
10 ~~registration as a registered barber.~~

11 Section 9. That § 36-14-21 be repealed.

12 ~~36-14-21. No apprentice may independently practice barbering, but he may as an apprentice~~
13 ~~do any or all of the acts constituting the practice of barbering under the immediate personal~~
14 ~~supervision of a registered barber. Only one such apprentice shall be employed by each~~
15 ~~registered barber.~~

16 Section 10. That § 36-14-22 be amended to read:

17 36-14-22. ~~Every~~ Each registered barber and ~~every registered apprentice~~ who continues in
18 active practice or service, shall annually, on or before the first day of July, renew ~~his~~ the barber's
19 certificate of registration and pay the required fee. ~~Every~~ Each certificate of registration, unless
20 renewed, ~~shall expire~~ annually expires ~~on the thirtieth day of June~~ thirtieth.

21 Section 11. That § 36-14-24 be amended to read:

22 36-14-24. The fee to be paid by an applicant for an examination to determine the applicant's
23 fitness to receive a certificate of registration to practice barbering may not exceed one hundred
24 dollars and for the issuance of the certificate, may not exceed fifty dollars; ~~by an applicant for~~

1 ~~an examination to determine the applicant's fitness to receive a certificate of registration to~~
2 ~~practice as an apprentice, may not exceed one hundred dollars, and for the issuance of the~~
3 ~~certificate, may not exceed fifty dollars.~~ All fees shall be set by the board by rules promulgated
4 pursuant to chapter 1-26. For the annual renewal of a certificate of registration to practice
5 barbering, no more than eighty dollars, and for the restoration of an expired certificate, no more
6 than twenty dollars, plus no more than fifteen dollars penalty for each expired year; ~~for the~~
7 ~~annual renewal of a certificate of registration to practice as an apprentice, no more than fifty~~
8 ~~dollars, and for the restoration of an expired certificate, no more than twenty dollars, plus no~~
9 ~~more than fifteen dollars penalty for each expired year.~~ The fee to be paid for a permit to operate
10 a barber school or college shall be set by rule promulgated pursuant to chapter 1-26 and may not
11 be more than one hundred fifty dollars annually.

12 Section 12. That § 36-14-25 be amended to read:

13 36-14-25. A registered barber ~~or a registered apprentice~~ who does not continue in active
14 practice or service may have ~~his~~ the barber's certificate of registration restored at any time within
15 three years, by paying the required restoration fee.

16 Section 13. That § 36-14-26 be amended to read:

17 36-14-26. The Board of Barber Examiners shall keep a record of its proceedings relative to
18 the issuance, refusal, renewal, suspension, and revocation of certificates of registration, which
19 record shall contain the name, place of business, and the residence of each registered barber ~~and~~
20 ~~registered apprentice~~ and the date and number of ~~his~~ the barber's certificate of registration. This
21 record shall be open to public inspection at all reasonable times.

22 Section 14. That § 36-14-36 be amended to read:

23 36-14-36. The commission of any of the following acts is a petty offense:

24 (1) ~~The practice of barbering, or acting, or serving, as an apprentice~~ without a certificate

- 1 of registration;
- 2 (2) Permitting any person in one's employ, supervision, or control; to practice as an
3 ~~apprentice, or as a journeyman~~ a barber, unless that person has a certificate of
4 registration;
- 5 (3) Obtaining a certificate of registration by fraudulent misrepresentation;
- 6 (4) Failing to display the certificate of registration as required by this chapter;
- 7 (5) Using any room or place for barbering which is also used for residential or business
8 purposes, unless a substantial partition of ceiling height separates the portion used
9 for residential or business purposes. The practice of cosmetology or the sale of hair
10 tonics, lotions, creams, cutlery, toilet articles, cigars, or tobacco, ~~shall~~ may not be
11 construed to mean business purposes;
- 12 (6) Failing or refusing to use separate and clean towels for each person served; or to
13 discard or launder each towel after once being used; or
- 14 (7) Failing or refusing to supply clean hot and cold water in ~~such quantities as may be~~
15 a quantity necessary to conduct any barbershop in a sanitary manner; ~~or~~; failing or
16 refusing to have water and sewerage connections with a water and sewerage system,
17 where the latter is available; ~~;~~ or failing or refusing to maintain a receptacle for hot
18 water of a capacity of less than five gallons.